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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Chairman's Statement for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

The past year has seen continued growth by the Group with strong performance in our like-for-like (LFL)
estate coupled with further store expansion, as we continue to execute our strategic initiatives.

The online growth continues to be particularly encouraging, with E-commerce sales growing 19.0%,
supported by further improvements in the online functionality and integration of the Hobbycraft blog into
the transactional website to help inspire our customers and drive conversion. Whilst the E-commerce
growth helps the online channel to become a bigger mix of the total business this is not at the detriment
of our store estate, with store LFL sales increasing by 4.7%.

This multi-channel growth is coupled with tight management of aur gross profit margins and a persistent
focus on driving efficiencies and cost savings, the combination of which has underpinned the 21.9%
increase in Adjustec EBITDA to £14.8m, with Adjusted EBITDA margin improving from 6.8% to 7.7%.

None of this would have been possible without Hobbycraft's incredible colleagues. | would like to say &
big thank you to all of our celleagues for the amazing passion and commitment that they bring to the
business and serving cur customers. it was great to see that Hobbycraft’s strong colleague engagement
was recognised this year by the Sunday Times Best Companiss awards which further highlights the
fantaslic work environment that our colleagues create.

1n light of COVID-19, this coming year will be particularly challenging. However, | am proud of how the
business has successfully navigated through the March-June lockdown, working closely with suppliers
to manage liquidity and working capital. We have continued to meet the needs of our customers through
our online business, whilst keeping our colieagues’ wellbeing at the heart of all decision-making. |
therefore have every confidence that our strong brand, great products, amazing colleagues and robust
liquidity position leave us well placed to withstand the longer term implications and emerge in a strong
posiion to continue achieving our growth objectives.

LUIILE

Matt Davies
Chairman



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

The directors present their Strategic Report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020.

Principal activities

The Group is a specialist retailer trading in the United Kingdom. The business conducted is principally
the sale of arts and craft related products, trading under the name Hobbycraft.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The process of risk acceptance and risk management is addressed through a framework of policies,
procedures and internal controls. All policies are subject to Board approval and ongoing review by
management. Compliance with regulation, health and safety, legal and ethical standards is a high
priority for the Group and the Board takes on an important oversight role in this regard.

The Group has developed a framewaork for identifying the risks that it is exposed to and their impact on
the Group's ability to achieve its business objectives, protect its reputation and drive shareholder value,
This process provides a clear structure for managing risk and ensures significant risks are understood
and visible to senior management, including the Board.

it should be noted that any systemn of risk management and internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The principal risks for our business are outlined in the table below.

Risk Description of risk Mitigation

Prolonged An enforced closure of the distribution | Social distancing guidelines are followed at all
impact due to | centre (DC) andfor the support office, | times to ensure operations across the DC, stores
CovID-19 along with a further enforced closure and support office can continue safely. All Health

of stores, would impact on business
operations and our abllity to generate
revenue,

Protonged impact of social distancing
rules or weakened consumer
confidence could cause a material
decline in revenue. The
implementation of social distancing
measures also leads to increased
costs.

A continued global impact could cause
supply chain disruption, with a
potential impact upon both supplier
operations and delivery lead times
and costs.

The virus could also impact upon the
availability of the workforce both for
suppliers globally and for Hobbycraft.

& Safety guidance is updated and communicated
to colieagues.

Additional equipment (including sanitisation
stations and Perspex screens) is provided to
protect customers and colleagues.

Support office colleagues are all capable of
working from home if necessary and arota
system is in place to limit office accupancy.

i There are additional management oversight and
; controls over cash and stock management to

ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained. Rolling
weekly cash forecasts are used to identify any
liquidity challenges in advance and provide
sufficient time for mitigating actions to be
implemented.




Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Risk

Description of risk

Mitigation

Business
continuity /
disaster
recovery

Failure to recover from a disaster in a
controfled and managed way in order
to limit the impact to business
operations, financial loss and
reputational damage,

A business impact assessment is updated bi-
annually and supported by Disaster Recovery
Plans.

Incident Management Team (IMT) protocols are in
place for responding to an incident.

Desklop scenario training is conducted annually
with the IMT.

Operational back up plans are in place for key
systems, managed by reputable third parties.

Supply chain
disruption

Lack or loss of speed in the supply
chain leading to avaitability issues and
failure to meet customer demand.

Loss of delivery could be due to
several reascns, including: a supplier
failing to deliver an order, goods
received not being fit for purpose, a
shipping cargo loss or a sustained
delay of imports (arising from strikes,
civil unrest, political turmail or natural
disasters).

Supply chain speed could be
significantly consteained due te a lack
of available DC rescurce (including
agency workers over peak periods).

A diverse range of products and suppliers avoids
over-reliance on any single suppher,

Any new suppliers are subject {o a due diligence
review, determining their ability to supply the
products with acceptable quality, along with their
financial stability and their legal and ethical
position.

Orders are subject to random qualily inspections.

Reputable iogistics companies are used to
provide freight and distribution services.

Corporate
Social
Responsibility

An ethical or quality standards failure
within the supply chain {including at
supplier premises), leading to
reputational damage.

Internal policies are in place covering Anti-Bribery
and Corruption, Tax Evasion and Modern Slavery.

Colleagues complete annual compliance training
in relation to key policies.

There is an internal Sustainability Plan in use,
along with policies for product sejection and for
monitoring ethical practices by suppliers {(including
supplier audits).

A QA/QC manager is responsible for ensuring all
products comply with Health & Safety (H&S) and
Trading Standards legislation.

Information
security and
data
protection

A data protection failure leading to
prosecution, fines and reputational
damage.

Risk of unauthorised data usage or
malicious cyber attack.

Systems failure compromising security
ot {fulfilment of online cr slore
fransactions.

Technical IT controls include a configured firewall,
network patching and anli-virus software.

Back-up procedures are in place to address any
short-term or specific loss of data.

Secure data storage facilities are hosted
externally.

IT Security Policies are published and maintained.

A mandatory 'Information Security’ training
module is completed by colleagues annually.




Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Risk

Description of risk

Mitigation

Economic
changes and
cost inflation

An economic downturn is likely to
impact upon sales.

Escalation of supply chain costs
arising from factors such as wage
inflation, foreign exchange rate
movemaents, changes to tariffs and
duties or increases in raw material
prices.

Increased fuel and energy costs,
impacling upon distribution or store
and support centre operational costs.

The economic impact of Brexit
remains difficult to quantify, but there
is a clear risk of increased cost, stock
intake delays and an extra
administrative burden.

Variations in foreign exchange rates
have an impact on margins, with US
dollar and Euro purchases.

Inflationary pressures and price rises are tracked
as part of the budget process and risks are
reviewed on a monthly basis.

There is a continuous focus to offset and mitigate
cost pressures through driving cost efficiencies.

A treasury policy is in place with clear guidelines
for hedging foreign exchange risk on US dollar
purchases 12 months in advance, whilst
maintaining foreign currency balances at minimum
levels,

The developments in the Brexit process are
continuously monitored by a cross-functional
working group,

Regulatory
compliance

Breaches of regulations or legal
requirements, leading to significant
fines and reputational damage.

Changes in regulatory landscape
adversely affecting our financial
condition and operations.

Failure to effectively manage product
quality and safety.

Failure to adhere to tax legislation.

Risk of fraud or errors in financial
reporiing.

QOversight is provided by an established
Governance and Compliance Steering committee,
which continuously monitors legal and regulatory
developments and implements changes to
processes or policies as necessary.

Health & Safety (H&S) training is compulsory for
all colleagues.

A programme of H&S inspections and monitoring
of key controls includes an annual external audit

of the DC and annual internal audits of ali stores

and support centres.

Quarterly H&S committee meetings are held with
senior management from all functions (Stores, DC
and support centres) to ensure oversight of any
H&S issues and actions.

An anti-bribery and corruption palicy must be
adhered to by all colleagues and suppliers, with
annual training provided colleagues.

Expert third party advice is sought with respect to
any significant tax matters. A palicy and training
are in place to prevent the corporate facifitation of
tax evasion.

Supplier on-boarding checks are completed and a
supplier audit programme is followed.

A Modern Slavery Statement published annually
to set out compliance with legal requirements.

A Data Protection Officer and a Loss Prevention
Manager are in post. Appropriate segregation of
duties is ensured, along with key controls where
there is any significant risk of fraud or error.

A GDPR project plan has been delivered and
continuous monitoring and reviews are ongoing.




Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Risk

Description of risk

Mitigation

Limited
warehouse
capacity

Lack of warehouse capacity has the
potential to limit future growth in the E-
commerce business.

The main warehouse facility is based in
Staffordshire where the local market provides
ready availability of high quality warehouses that
could operate as satellites if required.

The main floor of the warehouse provides ample
capacity for the next three years, comfartably
accommaodating stock for the 99 stores as at 16
February 2020 and proposed c. 15 new stores
over the next three years.

Annual investment in the DC has been made to
increase the capacity of E-commerce operations.

A strategy is in place to reduce the overall
stockholding, including improving stock turn and
reducing aged stock.

Reviews of future capacity are completed every 6
months to forecast when limits will be reached
and to plan remedial actions.

investment is included in the budget to drive
efficiency and the better use of space for E-
commerce operations.

Multichannel
strategy

Competition risk from existing
competitors and new entrants to the
market, in particular increased
competition for the online business
where there are fewer barriers to
entry.

Failure to meet customer expeclations
across all channels undermining our
multichannel proposition.

Lack of cohesion between channels
compromising the consistency of
customer experience.

increasing sales mix of the E-
comimerce channel leading to a lower
overall gross margin.

There is a strategy to continue to grow the E-
commerce business. Investment has been
included in the business plans to improve the
online customer proposition and to support future
growth.

There are regular reviews of profitability and
fulfilment costs across channels with continuous
focus on driving efficiency and margin
improvement.

A robust stare selection process is foliowed with
strong payback results.

Store profitability is reviewed on a monthly basis
coupled with ongoing discussions with landlords
to negotiate rent reductions and to exit any
marginally profitable stores.




Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weaks ended 16 February 2020

Risk

Description of risk

Mitigation

Talent
management

Shortage of (or a failure to recruit) top
talent to run our day-to-day operations

Failure to develop and retain talented
colleagues which could adversely
affect the business.

Regular performance reviews are supported by
training and development as required.

Hobbycraft offers competitive remuneration
packages and benefits. The People team carries
out salary benchmarking periodically using
relevant market data.

Key colleagues have adequate notice periods of
at least 8 months and certain individuals are
contractually restricted from joining competitors.

Succession planning for key positions is reviewed
on a periodic basis.

Labour turnover is reviewed on a monthly basis
and an annual engagament survey is in place to
monitor colleague feedback and drive actions to
improve engagement.

Key members of the senior management team are
incentivised through sharehoidings and bonus
schemes.

Working
capital
management

The potential shortage of cash
reserves to meet business needs at
critical times.

Inefficient use of working capital, such
as tying up too much warking capital
in stock or operating with
unfavourable payment terms.

A formal treasury policy is in place.

There is a rigorous budget-setting process with
regular detailed reviews of actual performance
against targets.

A suitable Revolving Cash Facility is available and
is reviewed regularly.

A 3-year business plan is updated annually.

A rolling weekly cash flow forecast covers the
medium term (3 months).

There is a well-defined stock rmanagement
process — outlined below.

There is a continuous focus on stock
management to keep stock as low as possible
without jeopardising avallability and sales.

Buying
decisions
over stock
ranges and
volumes

Poor buying decisions leading to a
surplus of stock could lead to working
capital problems and a shortage of
space, both at the DC and in stores.

Failure to spot key trends could also
impact on trading performance and
loss of market share.

An expsrienced buying team is in place,
supported with training and development.

There is a clearly defined buying process with
appropriate review and approval controls to cover
new products, replenishment of existing lines and
management of exiting existing fines from the
business.

There are weekly raviews of stock forecasts
against budget and Open To Buy (OTB) is also
reviewed on a weekly basis as part of stock sign-
off.

Ongoing analysis of sales and stock performance
is managed through a series of weekly cross-
functional meetings, with reference to a number of
KPls.




Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Business environment

The UK retail environment is competitive, with elerments within our categories ranged by independents
and many multi-site competitors, including the grocers. While the majority of companies do not offer
similar broad product coverage, there is sufficient interest, including from online specialists within
individual categories, to ensure that there is a continual focus on ‘value’ as an important differentiating
factor. This focus is even more important given the broader uncertain economic envirgnment and the
customers’ ability to research and compare prices to ensure they are getting value for money.

Strategy

The Group's success is dependent on the proper selection, pricing and merchandising of arts and craft
products. We believe it is important to retain a range that meets the needs of our established customer
base, who continue to benefit from our evolving specialist products, while also inspiring a new
generation of customers through more accessible pricing and inspiring product selection. This is
coupled with the inspiration that is provided by a wide range of in-store demonstrations and workshops
as well as our online ‘ldeas’ blog and social media content.

Furthermore, over the last few years we have worked to rationalise our range and build a simpler, better
and cheaper business through the removal of the slowest-moving lines. This remains an area of focus
for the business to improve margin and drive efficient use of working capital, as we continue fo look to
tighten our stack holding and reduce aged stock.

The Group is also focused on multi-channel growth as we seek to better serve our customers’ needs.
The Group empioys a robust selection process with regards to the opening of new stores and will
continue ta open new smaller format stores in relevant locations across the United Kingdom (including
Northern Ireland) to drive profitability and brand awareness. This is coupled with the aim of increasing
E-commerce participation as we continue to grow both online sales and profitabllity through {further
digital investment, improving our online experience and offering.

Alongside the growth in our Click and Collect proposition we also continue to drive footfall to stores
through an increase in in-store demos and workshops which provide inspiration 1o customers in the
local community and allow our colleagues to demonstrate their incredible knowledge and passion for
crafting, together with great service.

Our multi-channel aspirations are supported by our growing social media community and the Hobbycraft
Club which has over 4.5 million loyal members, Our use of targeted digital marketing, Facebook live
and YouTube demes, both Hobbycraft content and user-generated content across all social media
channels, and our ‘Ideas’ blog (which is now integrated into our transactional website} ail support our
sector-leading social media profile, which helps to drive engagement with new and existing customers.

Qur ability to achieve strategic objectives is underpinned by our greatest asset, our people. Colleague
engagement is therefore fundamental to our success, as we seek to become the employer of choice
within the market. Our progress against this initiative is evidenced by Hobbycraft finishing 5" in the
Sunday Times Best Companies Survey 2020.

Review of the business
The financial statements for the period ended 16 February 2020 {(FY20) are set out from page 21,

The results for FY20 show another strong period of growth with an improvement in sales and underlying
profitabifity despite the chalienging UK retail environment. Revenue increased by £15.9m (+8.9%) to
£193.6m driven by the increase in the number of stores, strong underlying store LFL growth and E-
commerce growth of £3.9m or +19.0%. The expansion of our store footprint included the opening of
new stores in Newbury, Worcester, Luton, Stratford-upon-Avon and Newtownabbey (our first store in
Northern ireland). This takes the total store network t0 99 at the end of the year with our 100" store due
to open next financial year.



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Qur Trading Gross Margin® rate declined to 55.6% from 55.8% in the prior period due to the impact of
the devaluation in Steriing, the increased mix of lower margin rate products and increased E-commerce
participation which inherently has a lower gross margin due to the variation in product mix of online
baskets. However, these impacts were largely offset by a continued focus on product improvement,
planned promotionalt campaigns and effective stock management.

Qur focus on cost contrel and driving operational efficiency, combined with the strong multi-channel
growth, resulted in Adjusted EBITDA? of £14.8m, an increase of £2.7m (+21.9%) on the prior period.
Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, is calculated as follows:

2020 2019
Note £'000 £000
Operating profit 1,939 1,509
Add back/(deduct):
One-off operating expenses 3 285 507
Fai vate movementofcervathe g w
Share based payment charge 20 1,204 203
Shareholder monitoring fees 25 150 180
Depreciation 10 5,409 5,687
Amortisation 9 5,358 5,285
Adjusted EBITDA 14,827 12,163

Net cash generated from operating activities continued to be strong at £12.5m and increased by £3.9m
or 45.6% on the prior period driven by the improvement in underlying profitability and an improvement
in working capital. The movement in working capital reflects our continued focus to manage stock tightly
following the planned investment into certain product categories in the prior year to improve availability,
which supported sales growth in the current year. The Group cash position closed at £34.6m, an
increase of £7.2m on the prior year, driven by the improvement in cash generated from operations
outlined above offset by an increase in capital investment.

Customer satisfaction (measured by the Net Promoter Score*) and Colleague engagement® also both
improved in the period to 86.0% and 92% respectively.

* Trading Gross Margin excludes the movements in fair value of financial instruments as management consider
that this represents the underlying margin performance of the Group, excluding the impact! of the marking to market
of outstanding forward coniracts since these gains/losses are not realised at the balance sheet dafe.

2 Management consider that Adjusted EBITDA reflects tha trading performance of the Group, excluding the impact
of capital investment. Adjusted EBITDA is operating profit/(loss) before exceptional and other one-off items, share
based payment charge or credit, the movements in fair value of financial instruments, any impairment charge or
write back of tangibie and intangible assets, any income stalement charge or credit in relation to the onerous lease
provision, shareholder monitoring fees, depraciation and amortisatior:.

? Total like-for-like (LFL) growth is calculated using the aggregate of sales from the E-commerce channel and any
store that has been open and trading since the start of the prior year, which is then compared to the aggregate of
sales in the prior year for the same population.

“ Nat Promoter Score (NPS) is an industry-wide management tool that Is used lo assess the loyalty of customer
relationships by asking “How likely is it you would recomrmend us 0 a friend?”. The balance of responses betwaen
“Promoters™ and “Detractors” gives an NP$%.

5 Colleague engagement is measured via an anonymous survey sent to elf colleagues once per year.

9



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Key performance indicators (‘KPIs’)

The Board monitors the progress of the Group by reference to the following KPls:

2020 2019
Retait sales £193.6m £177.7m
Trading Gross Margin % 55.6% 55.8%
Adjusted EBITDA £14.8m £12.2m
Total LFL growth (including E-commerce) 6.4% 2.0%
Average net stock per store (excluding Distribution Centre) £205.6k £190.4K
Net cash generated from operating activities £12.4m £8.6m
Cash at bank and in hand £34.6m £27.3m
Customer satisfaction {Net Promoter Score} 86.0% 85.9%
Colleague engagement 92.0% 90.0%

Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance {(ESG) impacts

ESG principles are central to the business and factoring these inta business decisions is important for
stakeholders, colleagues and the communities in which we operate. As well as complying with
regulatory requirements, we actively encourage our teams to make ESG considerations a part of
everyday business decision making.

As a Group, we are committed to becoming more sustainable as we grow, with a focus on colleague
wellbeing, our store communities and the way we use our buying power to drive positive change.

We continue to make progress against our internal Sustainability Commitment that we launched last
year with particular hightights in FY20 being:

- Backhauling all store waste to our distribution centre for recycling, with 1,768 tonnes of
distribution centre materials recycled in FY20 {2019: 1,358 tonnes)

- Introducing new recycling faciiities at our support centres and taking steps to significantly
reduce printing across the business

- Recygling information now provided on all own brand packaging

- Changes to our E-commerce packaging to reduce overall packaging usage, {o remove
unnecessary void fill and to more strongly highlight the recyclability logo

- Continued fundraising for our charity partner, Together for Short Lives, with over £1m raised
since the start of our partnership together

Going forwards, we remain committed to continue to reduce our impact on the environment, support

our colleagues and chosen charities, and ensure that we maintain integrity through ethical sourcing and
supplier partnerships.

10



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Section 172 statement

This statement summarises how the directors have exercised their duties with regards to the matters
set out in section 172 {a to f) of the Companies Act 2006.

Qur stakeholders

The Board considers the interests of stakeholders in decision-making and seeks to understand their
interests via direct engagement by directors and by reviewing reports and updates from members of
management. The directors consider that the folliowing are the Group's key stakeholders:

+ Colleagues (see below): the strength of our business depends upon the knowledge, hard work
and dedication of our colleagues, who in turn rely on the business for stable employment and
for opportunities to realise their potential.

Customers {see page 12); it is essential to our future that we consistently meet the needs of
our customers and maintain brand loyalty, supported by our highly successfuf Club (see page
8). We aim to continuously provide high quality products at accessible prices and fo stay up-to-
date with crafting trends.

« Communities and the environment (see page 12). serving local communities is at the heart
of Hobbycraft's ethos, whether through catering for local crafting needs or through our charity
partnerships, whilst we seek to minimise any adverse impact upon the environment from our
operations,

Suppliers (see page 12} supplier relationships are fundamental to our success, not least
because all our products are manufactured and delivered by suppliers, all cur locations are
leased sites and many of our essential services are provided by third parties. Furthermore,
suppliers often rely on us for income and to create employment in their local areas.

Regulators (see page 12): we seek to comply with all applicable laws and regulations and to
maintain a cooperative relationship with regulatory bodies. We are proud of our reputation for
high standards of business conduct.

Sharsholders (see page 12): we have a collaborative refationship with our shareholders and
welcome the advice and experience that the majority shareholder brings to our Board. We rely
an the majority shareholder as our main source of debt funding and they rely on us to manage
their investment in a sustainable way that generates value.

Consideration of long-term factors

The Board is mindful of the long-term implications of strategic decisions and carefully assesses those
implications. For example, decisions around capital expenditure aim to balance the need to invest in
the existing infrastructure with the objectives of growing the business and implementing new and
improved systems. For further information on strategy see page 8, with future developments also
discussed on page 13.

[ ]

The interests of colleagues

The interests of colleagues are always factored into the Board's decision-making. That principle is
helped by the length of service of the CEO and that of several members of the senior management
team. There is extensive retail experience among the senior team members who have a strong
understanding of and rapport with the colleague base. The senior team's knowledge and active
engagement enable the Board to maintain a sharp insight into the culture and views of colleagues,
which is further informed by the annual engagement survey conducted anonymously. The results of
the survey are considered a core KPI, as reported on page 10.

In addition, Hobbycraft has a number of other effoctive engagement mechanisms including the fact that
colleagues are kept informed of performance and strategy through regular presentations and updates.
These updates are delivered via a combination of face 1o face meetings and company newsletters.

11



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Executive directors attend key trading meetings throughout the year as well as regular meetings with
colleagues, including listening groups conducted by the CEQ. These inclusive principles are evidenced
by Hobbycraft's placing of 5% in the Sunday Times Best Companies Survey 2020.

Beard meetings are altended by the People Director to ensure that the Boeard is kept abreast of
employee-related matters, including demographics, engagement activities, the results of surveys,
labour turnover rates, diversity and gender equality, learning and development activity, and pay and
reward matters. The latter is also discussed in fermal remuneration committee meetings.

With regards to health, safety and welibeing, the Board is updated monthly on safety performance and
risk management. Trained mental health first aiders are available to all colleagues, which is
complemented by Hobbycraft's partnership with the Retail Trust, a charity that provides practical and
emotional support. The Group also operates fiexible working arrangements, which ali colleagues are
invited to apply for,

Relationships with suppliers, cusiomers and others

The Board is briefed on major contract negotiations with key suppliers and a formal policy is in place to
govern the contract approval process. A balance is sought between the need to obtain value for money,
to maintain or improve quality of service and to foster strang relationships with key suppliers. Any new
suppliers are subject to a due diligence review, determining their ability to supply the products or service
with acceptable quality, along with their financial stability and their legal and ethical position,

The sentiment of customers is measured via monitoring sales performance figures and shopping
behaviours, as well as direct engagement using surveys and listening groups, all of which are closely
monitored by the Board on a weekly or monthly basis. The interests of customers are considered in
decision-making, such as with respect fo the store porifolio, the online shopping experience, product
selection, and the monitoring of suppliers to ensure quality and safety standards are met. Refer to the
strategy on page 8 for further information. Customer satisfaction is a core KPI, as reported on page 10.

The Boeard is focused on meeting all regulatory obligations and strives for best practice in that regard,
with decision-making informed by regular dialogues with regulatory bodies, such as the Chartered
Trading Standards institute. Hobbycraft manages its tax affairs proactively to comply with tax
lsgislation, engaging with HMRC where required and seeking expert advice from qualified tax
professionals, For further information on risk management and regulatory compliance, refer to pages 3
to 7.

The CFO is responsible for managing the relationships with our bank, insurance provider and credit
rating agencies, and for the Group's cash and debt management and financing activities. The CFO
provides regular reports to the Board on these activities, including plans to ensure appropriate access
to debt capital and monitoring headroom on facilities.

Standards of business conduct and impacts on the community and the environment

The Board supports the Group’s strategy with regards to supporting focal communities, aiming to reduce
adverse impacts on the environment and seeking to maintain the highest standards of business
conduct. See page 10 for information on our environmental, social and corporate governance (ESG)
initiatives, including ongaing fundraising for our charity partner, Together for Short Lives.

Acting fairly between Company members

Ownership of the Company is divided between “A” and *B" ordinary shares. Each of these shares
carries a single right to vote and entitles the holder to attend general meetings and to receive dividends,
with no class of shares preferred to the other. As such, all shareholders benefit from the same rights,
as set out in the Company's articles of association and the Companies Act 2006. This structure is
reflective of the Board's key principle of treating all Company members fairly.

12



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Futura developments

We continue ta execute our strategy with improvements in product ranges supporting multi-channel
growth. Our broad range of products continues to evolve with mare specialis! materials and newness
ensuring that we satisfy the needs of craft enthusiasts and stay ahead of the competition.

Qur resolute focus on the strategy will see us bring further product innovation and inspiration with an
increase in store workshops and demonstrations, new sfores and further investment in our E-commerce
platform to support future growth.

As evar, these plans are underpinned by a focus on great customer service and colleague engagement.
We seek to provide nspiration to customers in the tocal communities we serve and allow our colleagues
to demonstrate their incredible knowledge and passion for crafting.

Clearly the impact of COVID-19 presents new challenges and will undoubtedly change the shage of the
UK retail sector. However, tha business has emerged from the March-June lockdown in a strong
poslition — the financial impact of COVID-18 is discussed in the post balance sheet event section of the
Directors' report (refer to page 17). Having maintained focus on fulfilling our customers' needs and
protecting our colleagues throughout the disruption, we are now well placed to withstand the longer-
term impacts of the pandemic and drive further growth.

Dominic Jordan

22 July 2020
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Directors’ Report for the §2 weeks ended 16 February 2020

The dirgctors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the 52 weeks
ended 16 February 2020. The comparative period was the 52 weeks ended 17 February 2019. Areview
of the business and future developments is set out in the Sirategic Report on pages 3 to 13.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our customers and colleagues in all areas of the business is of the highest
importance to the Group. We ensure that all colieagues are well trained in this area and we are
developing better ways for our colleagues to keep up to date with the latest legal requirements and
processes. We regularly have an independent audit of our performance to monitor any potential risks
and controls and to deai with all matters as quickly and thoroughly as possible.

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks which the directors believe are notably
the effects of liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The directors do not consider interest rate risk to
be significant given that the interest rate on the investor loan notes is fixed until 3 May 2023 and 99.46%
of the loan notes in issue at 16 February 2020 were held by the majority shareholders (2019: 99.46%).
The directors have evaluated price and credit risk and consider that these are not significant to the
Group.

Currency risk

The majarity of transactions for goods for resale purchased from overseas (which represents
approximately 24% of purchases by value) are denominated in US Dollars, with a smaller proportion in
Euros, The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage short/medium term foreign
currency requirements and limit the exposure to currency volatility between the US Dollar and Sterling.
Realised gains and losses from settled forward foreign exchange conltracts are recorded within cost of
sales, along with the unrealised marking to market of forward foreign exchange contracts that remain
outstanding at the period end.

Liquidity and cash flow risk

The Group prepares regular forecasts and reports to the Board in order to ensure that sufficient funds
are available to support both working capital needs and capital requirements as planned. The Group
had a net cash position of £34.6m at period end and also had access to a £6.0m revolving credit facility,
including a £2.5m overdraft facility which was not utilised during the financial year. There was a
covenant attached to the banking facility requiring a minimum EBITDA of £6.5m for each rolling 12
month period. The covenant was tested quarterly and there were no breaches during the financial year.

The revolving credit facility expired on 30 April 2020 and it has been replaced with a new £3.5m working
capital facility with an expiry date of 31 Januvary 2021. The new facilily provides a £1.0m duty deferment
guarantee and £2.5m of credit relating to forward foreign exchange contracts. The covenant attached
to the revolving credit facility was also amended to a minimum cash requirement of £5.0m which is
tested monthly at period end and on a rolling 13-week forecast.

Economlic downturn

As a retailer the success of the business is reliant on consumer spending. In response to this risk, senior
management closely monitors results and economic cenditions and, when necessary, modifies
business strategies accordingly. It is expected that a number of factors including COVID-18, Brexit,
National Minimum/Living Wage legislation and cost inflation will have an impact on consumer spending
in the short/medium term but the full impact is unknown. Detalled financial modelling has been
performed with respect to the immediate and longer-term impacts of COVID-19 ~ refer to the post
balance sheet event outlined on page 17,
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Directors’ Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Corporate Governance

A key element of our Corporate Governance is to ensure compliance with all current and new legislation.
Senior management actively monitors changes tc legislation and works with suppliers and advisors,
where necessary, to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to adapt working practices and processes.

Employee policy

It is essential to the success of the Group that the right colleagues are recruited and retained. The
business has a policy {o ensure every colleague is appraised annually, reviewing past performance and
selting future chjectives. Each colleague is then developed and supported as determined by their
individual need. The appraisals play an important role in the individual's career planning and the
development of training needs.

The Group has a policy of communicating openly with colleagues and provides information about the
Group's performance on an ongoing basis. Regular meetings are held in stores and in support offices
to ensure that all colleagues achieve a common awareness of the financial and economic factors that
affect the Group. These mestings also allow colleagues to share their views on matters affecting their
interests. In addition, the Group continues to operate a share scheme for senior managers to encourage
the involvement of these colleagues in the Group's performance.

Across our stores, distribution centre and support offices we are committed to equal and fair working
practices, ensuring no job applicant or team member is discriminated against, directly or indirectly, on
grounds of disability, gender, nationality, ethnic or racial origins, marital status, religious belief, political
opinion, age or sexual orientation, It is our policy to give equal opportunity of employment and career
development to disabled and able persons according to their suitabllity to perform the work required
and the services of existing colleagues who become disabled are retained whenever practicable.

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy concerning the payment of its trade creditors is, unless otherwise agreed at the time
of the contract, payment of invoices 60 days {2019: 60 days) after the month of invoice.

For all trade creditors, it is the Group’s policy to;

« agree the terms of payment al the start of business with that supplier;
« ensure that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment; and
s pay in accordance with its contractual and other legal obligations.

Dividends
There were no dividends paid or proposed during the period ended 16 February 2020 (2019: nit).

Political donations

The Group made no political donations during the pericd ended 16 February 2020 (2019: nil).

Directors

The directors of the Group who were in office during the period and up to the date of signing the financial
statements were;

Matt Davies ‘ Non-executive Chairman
Dominic Jordan CEQ

Russell Harrison CFO (appuinted 15 April 2019)
Guy Weldon investor Nominee

Emma Watford investor Nominee

Lawrence Christensen Non-executive

The Investor Nominees are proposed and appointed on behalf of the ultimate controlling party,
Bridgepoint Europe Portfolio IV LP (note 26).
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Directors’ Report {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

A qualifying third party indemnity provision was in place throughout the period through a Group policy
for the benefit of one or more of the directors.

Audit committee

Hobbycraft Group Limited, in respect of the Group as a whole, has an audit committee in place to review
the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal financial conirals. The commiltee meeis at least
ance a year and receives reports from external auditors and from management.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each director of the Group has confirmed that, in fulfilling their duties as a director, they have;

« taken ail necessary steps in order o make themselves aware of any information relevant to the
audit and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information; and

+ s0 far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit inforrmation of which the auditors have not
been made aware.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section 418 of
the Companies Act 2006.

independent auditors

KPMG LLP have expressed their willingness to remain as auditors and it is the intention of the directors
to re-appoint them for the next financial year.

Staternent of directors’ responsibllities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
taw they have elected to prepare the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland.

tnder company |law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of the
Group's profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial
statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess the Group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and -

= use the going concern basis unless they either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent
company or to cease gperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and parent company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and parent company and to prevant
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Directors’ Report {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Post balance sheet avent: COVID-19 pandemic

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group closed all its stores on 23 March 2020. The 90 stores
in England and Northern Iretand reopened on 15 June 2020 and the remaining 10 stores across
Scotland and Wales were all reopened by 29 June 2020. Despite mitigating actions and a substantial
upturn in E-commerce sales during the March-June lockdown period, it is expected that the period of
store closure, along with any lasting impacts of the pandemic on consumer sentiment, will result in a
material reduction in revenue for the financial year ending 21 February 2021. As a result, the Group is
likely to report a significant decline in Adjusted EBITDA for the period with the clear possibility that it will
be loss-making.

During the period of disruption, the business worked with suppliers and other key stakeholders to
carefully manage stock commitments and liquidity. Other actions included:

~  Utilising the Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme, which is expected to provide a
benefil of c. £3.9m-£4.4m for the period from March to August 2020.

- Benefiting from the Government's business rates relief, which will provide a benefit of c. £8.6m
for the financial year ending 21 February 2021, along with the deferral of VAT paymaents relating
to the March-June VAT quarter.

- The covenant attached to the new £3.5m working capital facility was set to a reduced minimum
cash requirement of £5.0m.

Impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment was initially assessed using growth
assumptions from the FY21 budget and the 3-year business plan. As a resuit of the impacts of COVID-
19, these assumptions, specifically for FY21, are no longer appropriate. Revised financial modelling
has therefore been prepared using the assumption of a prelonged downturn in performance arising from
a sustained economic downturn and weakened consumer confidence. Despite significant levels of
prudence used in the modelling, no impairment is shown to be necessary.

Golng concern

The Group reported an opearating profit of £1.9m (2019: £1.5m) and an operating cash inflow of £12.4m
(2019: £8.6m). Notwithstanding the Group net liabilities of £45.0m (2019: £35.9m) as at 16 February
2020, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors
consider to be appropriate for the reasons outlined below.

The Group's business activities, together with the principal risks that may affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 13 which, together with the
Directors’ repont, describes the Group’s financial position, cash flows and borrowing facilities. Further
information on these areas is detailed in the financial statements which are set out from page 21.

in light of COVID-19, the directors have reviewed the current financial performance and the liquidity of
the business, and assessed its resilience to a reduction in sales through a series of stress tests.

Since the year-end, the Group’s stores were closed to trade for the three-month period of lockdown
from March to June (as described further in the post balance sheet event section above). In spite of
this, the directors have actively managed the cost base and working capital of the Group.

As part of the financial modelling, the directors have reviewed projected cash flows up to the end of
February 2022 and modelled a sustained decline in revenue on the assumption that store sales never
fully recover to pre-COVID-19 levels. The directors have modeiled the assumption that store sales will
be -10% lower than originally planned (c. -B% below FY20) throughout peak trade in 2020 and up to
the end of February 2022.
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Directors' Report (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 Fehruary 2020

This analysis has then been sfress-tested further by considering a further period of lockdown over peak
trade in 2020, in addition to the assumption that the current working capital facility (as described an
page 14} is not renewed upon expiry in January 2021. The modelling shows that the covenant attached
to the working capital facility continues to be met up until its assumed expiry in January 2021, whiist
there are no covenanis attached to the existing loan notes. There are no scheduled repayments of the
loan nates during this period as the expiry of the debt Is not until 3 May 2023.

As part of the assessment, management have considered the cost saving and cash preservation
initiatives that would be available to the Group, in line with the actions taken during the March to June
lockdown period (as described on page 17), without assuming there will be further support from
government funding.

The directors report that, having reviewed cugrent performance and forecasts, they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue its operations, service its working capital
needs and meet its debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they have
continued 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Russeli Harrison

7 Enterprise Way

Aviation Park

Bournemaouth International Airport
Hurn, Christichurch

Dorset

BH23 6HG

’,lq July 2020
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Hobbycraft Group Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hobbycraft Group Limited ("the Company™) for the year
ended 16 February 2020 which comprise the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group
Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Parent Company's Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group
Cash Flow Statement, and related notes, including the aceounting policies in pote 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's affairs as at
16 February 2020 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

s have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to hiquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that
the Group and the Company's financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded
that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements

(“the going concern period").

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements. In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the
Group's business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company's financial
resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in
these respects.

However, as wa cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Group
or the Company will continue in operation.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsibie for the strategic report and the directors™ report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated
or inconsistent with the financial staterments or our audil knowledge. Based solely on that work:

» we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;
in our opinion the Information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

« i our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Hobbycraft Group Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not heen kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 16, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’'s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements. A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities,

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have fermed.

KOabafrnforss

Natasha Jones {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Toligate

Chandier's Ford

S053 3TG

29 Jduly 2020
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Group Profit and Loss Account for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

One-off One-off
items and iterns and
fair value fair value
gain/(loss) gain/(loss}
on financial on financiaf
2020 instruments 2020 2019  instruments 2019
Note £'000 £000 £'0600 £'000 £'600 £'000
Trading Trading
results Total results Total
Revenue 2 193,560 - 193,560 177,693 - 177,693
Cost of sales 3 (86,013) (482) (86,495) (78,606) 1,178 (77,428)
Gross profit 107,547 (482) 107,085 99,087 1,178 100,265
Operating
expenses
(before
depreciation,
amortisation. 3 {92,720) (285) (93,005) (86,924) (507) (87.431)
share based
payments and
monitoring fees)
Adjusted
EBITDA 14,827 (767) 14,060 12,163 671 12,834
Depreciation
and 3 {10,767) - {10,767) (10,972) - {10,972)
amortisation
Share based
payments 20 (1,204) - (1,204) (203) - {203)
Monitering fees 25 (150) - {150) (150) - {150)
Operating
profit 2,706 {767) 1,939 838 671 1,509
Finance income 6 159 . 159 85 - 85
Finance costs 7 {10,060) - (10,060) (9,375) - (9,375)
Loss before
taxation (7,195) (767)  (7.962) (8452) 671  (7.781)
Tax on loss 8 {1,157) - (1,157) {1,398) - (1,398)
Loss for the (8,352) (767)  (9419)  (9.850) 671  (9,179)

financial year

All amounts relate to continuing activities. The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial

statements.
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Group Batance Sheet as at 16 February 2020

Registered number: 07216034
16 February 17 February

2020 2019
Note E'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 9 50,350 54,544
Tangible assets 10 24,081 25,085
74,4_31 79,639
Current assets
Inventoties 12 33,860 32,023
Debtors (including £856k {2019: £644k) due after more
than one year) 13 7,765 6,780
Cash and cash equivalents 34,578 27,342
76,303 66,145
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (34,752) (31,317)
Net currém asé;t? " ’ T 41,551 34,828
Total assets less current liabilities 115,982 114,467
Creditors: amounts falling due afier more than one year 15 {160,908) {150,281)
Provisions for liabilities 17 (40) (40)
Net liabilities (44,966) (35,854}
Capiltal and reserves
Called up share capital 21 259 259
Share premium account 5,386 5,386
Treasury shares 20 (411) (411)
ESOT reserve 20 318 311
Capital contribution 72,790 72,790
Profit and loss account {123,308) (114,189)
Total shareholders’ deficit (44,966) {35,854}

The financial statements and the notes on pages 27 to 53 were approved by the Board of Directors,
authorised for issue on 49 July 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

9 PY

Russell Harrison
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Company Balance Sheet as at 16 February 2020

Registered number: 07216034
16 February 17 February

2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000

Fixed assets
Investments 11 5,652 4,636
5,652 4,636

Current assets

Debtors (including £822k (2019: £1,817k) due after 13 824 1817
more than one year)

Cash and cash equivalents 245 -

1,069 1,817
Creditors: amounts falling due within cne year 14 (122) (736)
Net current assets 947 1,081
Total assets less current liabilities 6,599 5,717
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 15 (1,801) (731)
Net assets 4,798 4,988

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 21 259 259
Share premium account 5,386 5,386
Treasury shares 20 (411) (411)
ESOT reserve 20 318 311
Profit and loss account (754) (559)
Total shareholders’ funds 4,798 4,986

The net loss made by the Company during the period was £195k (2019: loss £482k).

The financial statements and the notes on pages 27 to 53 were approved by the Board of Directors,
authorised for issue on &4 July 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Russell Harrison
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Group and Company Statements of Changes in Equity
for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Called up Share Share Capital Profit and
Group share pramium Tr:::::g reEsggz based contribution loss Total
capital  account payments reserve account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E£'000 £'000 £'000
s Fepruary 250 5386  (411) ; 35 72790 (105010) (26,951)
Share based
payment credit ) i ) h (35) ) ) (35)
Gain on
allocation of - - - 311 - - - 311
shares
Loss for the
financial year ) ) ) B ) N M,\-,_ ~ M_Eg*‘i 79)  (9,179)
M 37 February 250 538  (411) 31 - 72,790 (114,189) (35,854)
Gain on o
allocation of - - - 7 - - - 7
shares
Loss for the
_financial year - - - - - - (8,119)  (9,119)
2‘;;: February 259 5386  (411) 318 . 72,790 (123,308) (44,966)
Called Share Share Profit and
Company up share premium Trzﬁ::,’g reEsigZ based loss Total
capital account payments account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
o 18 February 259 5,386 (411) . 35 @7 5192
Share based
payment credit ) - . ) {35) B (35)
Gain on allocation . 3 . 311 ) } 411
of shares
Loss for the
financial year ) . - , B ) i} o (48?) (482)
2;1197 February 259 5,386 (411) 319 - (558) 4,986
e e - - - .
of shares ) ° ) 7 ) ) 7
Loss for the
financlal year - - ' . - (195) (195)
Poay | oruany 259 5,386 (411) 318 ; (754) 4,798
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Group Cash Flow Statement for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

2020 2019

Note £000 £'000
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss for the financial year (9,115) (9,179)
Adjustments for:
Exchange loss/(gain) on cash and cash equivalents 47 (344)
Share based payment expense 20 1,204 203
Depreciation and amortisation 3 10,767 10,972
Loss on disposal of nan-current assets 3 " 71
Finance income 6 {159) (85)
Finance costs 7 10,060 9,375
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial instruments 482 (1,178)
Taxation expense 8 1,157 1,398
Increase In inventories 12 {1,937} (4,627)
Increase in trade and other receivables 13 (773) (678)
Increase in tfrade and other payables 14, 16 1,925 2,574
Cash generated from operations 13,665 8,502
Corporation tax (paidYreceived (1,276) 68
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,389 8,570
Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of intangible assets 9 (1,146) (333)
Purchase of tangible assets 10 (4,018) {3,587)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets - -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,162) {3,920)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid 7 {103) (75)
Interest received 6 159 85
Net cash from financing activitias 56 10
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,283 4,660
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 27,342 22,338
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents (47) 344
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 34,578 27,342
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 34,578 27,342

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements,
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Hobbycraft Group Limited

Group Cash Flow Statement (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

The table below provides an analysis of changes in net debt of the Group fram the beginning to the end
of the current reporting period:

Borrowings due Cash and cash

after more thanyc;r;e} equivalents Net debt
£'000 £'000 £'000

Net debt aﬁalysis I
At 17 February 2019 (140,845) 27,342 {113,503)
Cash flows - 7.283 7,283
Non-cash changes (9,957) - (9,957)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - (47) (47)
“At 16 February 2020 (150,802) 34,578 (116,224)

The borrowings due after more than one vear are investor loans. The non-cash movements relating to
investor loan notes represent interest accrued.



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Accounting policies
Statement of compliance

Hobbycraft Group Limited is a private limited company incorporated, domiciled and registered in
England. The registered number of the Company is 07216034 and the registered address is Hobbycraft
Head Office, 7 Enterprise Way, Aviation Business Park, Christchurch, Dorset, BH23 6HG.

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis In
compliance with FRS 102 and the Companies Act 2006 as it applies o the financial statements of the
Group for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020. -

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial instruments that are recognised &t fair value through the profit or loss.

The financial statements are prepared in Sterling, which Is the functional currency, and are rounded to
the nearest £°000.

Going concemn

The Group reported an operating profit of £1.9m (2019: £1.5m) and an operating cash inflow of £12.4m
{2019: £8.6m). Notwithstanding the Group net lfabilities of £45.0m (2019: £35.9m) as at 16 February
2020, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors
consider to ba appropriate for the reasons outlined helow,

The Group's business activities, together with the principal risks that may affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 13 which, tegether with the
Directors' report, describes the Group's financial position, cash flows and borrowing facilities. Further
information on these areas is detailed in the financial statements which are set out from page 21.

In light of COVID-19, the directors have reviewed the current financial performance and the liquidity of
the business, and assessed its resilience to a reduction in sales through a series of stress tests. Since
the year-end, the Group’s stores wera closed to trade for the three-month period of lockdown from
March to June (as described further in the post balance sheet event section on page 17). In spite of
this, the directors have actively managed the cost base and working capital of the Group.

As part of the financial modelling, the directors have reviewed projected cash flows up to the end of
February 2022 and modelled a sustained decline in revenue on the assumption that store sales never
fully recover to pre-COVID-19 levels. The directors have modelled the assumption that store sales will
be -10% lower than originally planned (c. -8% below FY20) throughout peak trade in 2020 and up to
the end of February 2022.

This analysis has then been stress-tasted further by considering a further period of lockdown over peak
trade in 2020, in addition to the assumption that the current working capital facility (as described on
page 14) is not renewed upon expiry in January 202t. The modelling shows that the covenant attached
lo the working capital facility continues to be met up until its assumed expiry in January 2021, whilst
there are no covenants attached to the existing loan noles. There are no scheduled repayments of the
loan notes during this period as the expiry of the debt is not until 3 May 2023.

As part of the assessment, management have considered the cost saving and cash preservation
initiatives that would be available to the Group, in line with the actions taken during the March to June
lockdown period (as described on page 17), without assuming there will be further support from
government funding.

The directors report that, having reviewed current performance and forecasts, they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to confinue its operations, service its working capital
needs and meet its debts as they fall due for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they have
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidaied until the date that such control ceases. Control
comprises the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefit
from its activities,

The Group financial statements have been prepared using the acquisition method of accounting and
include all subsidiaries of the Company. Group accounting policies have been applied consistently
across all Group companies. All profits and losses on intra-group transactions have been eliminated on
producing the Group financial statements.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
not to present a Profit and Loss Account. The Company has taken advantage of the exemption FRS
102 not to prepare a separate Company cash flow statement with related notes.

Critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

Estimates, judgements and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates, judgements and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actual results,

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment are
discussed below:

(a) Inventory provisions

Provisions are made for stock loss at stores incurred from the date of the last full count to the
period end. Provisions are made on a store by store basis and at a product category level, applied
as a percentage of sales since the last full count for each product category. The percentage of
sales is estimated based on historical shrink rates, adjusted if necessary to reflect any known
change in circumstances.

(b) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets and goodwill

The Group considers whether tangible and intangible assets and/or goodwill are impaired. Where
an indication of impairment is identified the estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units is determined based on the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell.
This requires estimation of future cash flows and selection of appropriate discount rates fo
calculate their net present value.

{c) Share based payments

The Group and Company operated two share-based payment schemes during the period: the
Hobbycraft Share Offer Plan and the Executive Scheme. As the shares within the scheme could
benefit from both cash and equity-settled value, management must exercise judgement to
determine which outcome is the most probable for determining the appropriate accounting
treatment.

Management are also required to exercise judgement in estimating the date of change of control
of the Group and Company. The share based payment charge is recognised in each period as
it is incurred, based on a fair value model. The key assumptions of this model for each scheme
are presented in note 20,

28



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Other estimates and assumptions include:
(a) Gift card and gift voucher adjustment

An adjustment is made to reflect the fact that a proportion of the gift cards and gift vouchers in
issue is not anticipated to be redeemed by customers. The adjustment is estimated based on
historical redemption rates, with a different percentage applied dependent on the time that has
elapsed since each gift card or gift voucher was last involved in a transaction.

(b) Debt restructuring

Critical judgements are required when the Group periodically reviews its debt structure, which
may lead to revisions to debt terms or interest rates, repayments and partial or full walvers of
accrued interest. There were no refinancing events requirement any judgement during the
financial year ending 16 February 2020.

(c} Tax judgemants

At each financial period end, judgement is required in determining the Group provision for income
taxes. There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Tax provisions are recognised for uncertain tax positions where the amount of tax
payable on open tax positions remains to be agreed with relevant tax authorities. The Group
provides for uncertain tax positions based on the best estimate of the most likely outcome in
respect of the relevant issue.

Where the final tax outcome on uncertain tax positions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, the difference will impact the Group's current and deferred tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made, as presented in note 8.

Deferred tax assets and #abilities require judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised.
In particular, judgement is used when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets should
be recognised, taking into account the expected timing and level of future taxable profils of the
Group. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary ditferences, carried forward tax credits
or tax losses can be utilised.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue represent amounts received and receivable for goods provided to customers outside the Group,
stated net of returns, staff or other discounts, and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when goods are delivered or collected and title is
passed. E-commerce sales are recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer or collected
from a store by the customer. In practice, it is necessary to estimate the timing of when goods are
delivered or collscted in order to show the related revenue as deferred income and to make corresponding
adjustments to inventary and cost of sales. The estimates are based on system-driven delivery and
collection records where available, along with judgements based on historical patterns.

Revenue from gift vouchers and gift cards sold Hy the Group is recognised on the redemption of the gift
vyoucher or gift card. Monies received are shown as deferred income prior to redemption.

It is the Group's paolicy to sell its products to the end customer with a right of return. Refund accruals are

estimated based on accumulated experience. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales consists of expenses incurred in bringing products to a saleable position and condition.
Such costs principally include purchasing of products from suppliers, packaging and freight.

In addition, cost of sales also includes rebate income from suppliers. Volume based rebates are
recognised when contraciually agreed volume thresholds are expected to be met. The amount of rebate
recognised is the proportion of the total rebate due based on actual volumes purchased in the year, which
is credited to cost of sales for the proportion of stock sold in the year and credited as an adjustment to
inventories for any proportion of unsold stock. Rebate income is also received from suppliers to support
the funding of promational discounts to clear excess stock which is recognised based on the volume of
products soid at the agreed discount.

Credit card charges are presented within operating expenses.
Exceptionat items

Significant items of income and expense that are not considered in the ordinary course of business are
disclosed in the Adjusted EBITDA reconciliation as exceptional items. The separate reporting of
exceptional items helps provide an indication of the Group's underlying business performance.

Finance income and finance costs

The main components of finance income and costs are interest income on cash deposits and interest
accruing on foan notes. The interest accruing on loan notes is charged to profit and loss over the term of
the debt using the effective interest rate method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the
carrying amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated
capital instrument and are amortised over the expecied life of the debt.

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are included at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment,
Cost inciudes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use, including internal staff costs where appropriate.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item wiil fiow to the Group and the cost of the itern can be measured
reliably. Subsequent costs are depreciated over the asset's remaining usefut economic life. The carrying
amount of a replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are:

Leasehold improvements 5- 25 years
Plant and machinery 3-10vyears
Fixtures and fittings 3-10years
Computer equipment 3-8 vyears

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the remaining term of the lease. Depreciation
methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed if there is an indication of a significant change
since last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the Group expecls to consume an asset’s fufure
economic benefits.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceads of disposal with the net
carrying amount and are included in the income statement. The Group assesses at each reporting date
whether tangible fixed assets are impaired.
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Goodwill

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of the Group’s interest in the identifiable net assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired. In respect of acquisitions prior o 24 February 2014, goodwill is included
on the hasis of its deemed cost, which represents the amount recorded under old UK GAAP. Intangible
assets previously included in goodwill, are not recognised separately.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation -and accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination from which it arose.

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the value of the brand and customer base which has sufficient
depth that management expect the benefit to accrue over 20 years in line with the expected life of the
business, ongoing supplier relationships {up to 22 years), and the length of retail leases (15-20 years).
Goodwill is amortised over 20 years and has no residual value. Goodwill is tested for impairment in
accordance with Section 27 ‘Impairment of assets' when there is an indication that goodwill may be
impaired.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost. Internally generated intangible assets are
capitalised when certain criteria are met in accordance with Section 18 of FRS 102, expenditure on
research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group intends, and has the technical ability and sufficient resources, to
complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve
design for, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or
processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in the profit and loss account as
an expense as incurred.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulaled amartisation and accumutated impairment losses.,
Intangible assets are amortised on a siraight line basis over their estimated useful life. Intangible assets
are amortised from the date they are avaifable for use. The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed
for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The useful economic lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Computer software 3years

if there are indicators that the residual value or useful life of an intangible asset has changed since the
most recent annual reporting period previous estimates will be reviewed and, if current expectations differ,
the residual value, amortisation method or useful life will be amended. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of benefit will be accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate. Intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 Impairmant of assets
when there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost plus incidental expenses, less any provision
for impairment. Impairment reviews are performed by the directors when there has been an indication of
potential impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value. Costincludes direct
costs incurred in bringing inventories to their current location and condition such as transport and handling
casts, plus an altributable proportion of distribution overheads.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less further costs to
be incurred to disposal. Provisions are made where necessary for obsolets, slow moving and defective
stocks and shown net of cost. The provision charge or reversal is recognised within cost of sales.

Provision policy

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Leased asseots

Where an arrangement is dependent on the use of a specified asset or assets, or conveys the right to
use an asset, it is determined to contain a lease although this may not be its legal form. The lease element
of the arrangement is accounted for as either a finance or operating lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group. The Group does not have any finance leases. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Rent free periods, capital contributions and other lease inducements receivable
on entering an operating lease are recognised as deferred income and released to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease term or to the break clause, whichever bes! reflects the economic
benefit of the lease.

Taxation

The taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period.
Tax is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account except to the extent that it relates to iterns recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case tax is also recognised in other
comprehensiva income or directly in equity as appropriate.

Current taxation

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year or
prior financial years. Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject {o interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Under FRS 102, deferred tax is recognised on a timing difference plus approach. Timing differences are
the differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as stated in the financial
statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments
in periods different from those in which they are recognised as financial instruments.

Consequently, deferred tax has been recognised on all fair value re-measurements and on all fair value
adjustments arising on business combinations (other than goodwill). There are no adjustments required
on business combinations arising prior to transition.

A net deferred tax asset is racognised only if it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates expected to be effective at
the time the timing differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assels and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies, which are those other than the functional currency of an entity, are
recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Resulting
exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the same place as the underlying transaction.

foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors are
presented in profit or loss within cost of sales.

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, and loans to fellow
group companies, are initially recagnised at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs, unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present
value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Atthe end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
evidence of impairment. If an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective
interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or ioss within operating expenses.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss within operaling expenses.

Financial assets are derecognised when (2) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assef expire
or are settled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred
to another party, or (c) despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, control
of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset
to an unrelated third party without imposing additionai restrictions.

Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, and loans from fellow group companies, are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where
the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of
interest. Trade and other payables are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
attributable transaction costs and any impairment losses.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facitity will be drawn down, the fee Is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary

course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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Derivatives, including forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial instruments. The Group
uses these derivatives to manage risks arising from changes in foraign currency exchange rates relating
to the purchase of overseas sourced products. The derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the
balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of outstanding derivatives are recognised Iin profit or loss
in cost of salas. The realised gain or loss on settled derivatives is recognised in profit or loss in cost of
sales.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is whan the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceabie right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seitle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets,
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amourit is estimated. The recoverable amount of an
asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 1o sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired
in 2 business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or
(*CGU") that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be aflocated to individual CGUs or groups of CGUs on a non-
arbitrary basis, the impairment of goodwill is determined using the recaverable amount of the acquired
entity in its entirety, or if it has been integrated then the entire group of entities into which it has been
integrated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill ailocated to the units,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit {group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed. An impairment loss recognised for other
assets is reversed only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased lo apply.

Impairment losses recognised in prior pgriods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Pension scheme arrangements

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for eligible employees and directors. The
Group's obligation at any point in time is restricted to the amount of contributions payable to date. The
pension cost is therefore the amount of the conlributions payable in respect of the particular accounting
period.

34



Hobbycraft Group Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Share based paymaents

Share based payment transactions in which the Group receives goods or services by incurring a Hability
to transfer cash or other assets that is based on the price of the Group’s equity instruments are accounted
for as cash-seltled share based payments. The fair value of the amount payable to employees is
recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the peried in which the
employees become unconditionally entitted to payment. The liability is re-measured at each balance
sheet date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised as an
employment expense in profit or loss,

The Group operates two share based payment schemes: the Hobbycraft Share Offer Plan and the
Executive Scheme. Each scheme is accounted for as a cash-settled share based payment scheme.

The fair value of these cash-settled awards is measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model and allocated over a vesting period to the anticipated exit date. Expected share price
volatility is determined through the assessment of the historical volatility of a comparable group of
companies over a period consistent with the expected life of the scheme. This aims to be indicative of
future trends, but may not necessarily reflect the actual outcome. The expected life of the scheme is
based on management’s estimated date of a change of control of the Group and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. As the awards are deemed to be cash-settied their fair
value is reviewed on an annual basis with a corresponding liability being recognised.

Transactions with the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT}

The EBT was set up to allow the issue of shares to Group employees and is consclidated into the Group
and Company's financial statements. Company shares owned by the EBT are recognised at weighted
average cost as Treasury shares. The ESOT reserve represents the gain or loss made by the EBT on
the transfer of shares to employees. Transactions of the Company-sponsored EBT are treated as being
those of the Company and are therefore reflected in the Company and Group financial statements. In
particular, the EBT's purchases and sales of shares in the Company are debited and credited directly to

equity.
Adjusted EBITDA

In addition to the information required by FRS 102 and to assist with the understanding of earnings trends,
the Group has included within its financial statements a non-FRS 102 measure referred lo as Adjusted
EBITDA.

The Board consider that Adjusted EBITDA reflects the trading performance of the Group, excluding the
impact of capital investment. Adjusted EBITDA is operating profit/(loss) before exceptional and other one-
off items, share based payment charge or credit, the movemnents in fair value of financial instruments,
any impairment charge or write back of tangible and intangible assets, any income statement charge or
credit in relation to the onerous lease provision, shareholder monitoring fees, depreciation and

amortisation.

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts derived from the provision of gocds which fall within the Group's
ordinary activities, stated net of value added tax. The Group operates in a single principal area of activity,
retailing, specialising in art and craft related products.

Revenue consists entirely of sales made in the United Kingdoem. The Group's international E-commerce
sales are made via an intermediary based in the United Kingdom.
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3 Operating loss

Operating expenses (before depreciation, amortisation, share based payments and monitering fees) are
made up as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Distribution costs 40,026 37,227
Administrative expenses 52,684 50,050
92,720 87.277

In addition to the operating expenses, there are the following one-off items;
2020 2019
£'000 £000
Refinancing costs 285 -
People costs (including re-structuring costs) - 8a7
Total nen-recurring costs 285 507

The refinancing costs relate to a review of the working capital facilities of the Group, which was put on
hold in March 2020. In the prior year, the non-recurring costs included statutory and enhanced payments
arising from a restructure of senior management and the reversal of the un-utilised portion of a provision
relating to an employee matter.

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Loss before taxation is stated after charging/{crediting):
Loss on disposal of tangible assets ' 11 71
Depreciation of tangible assets 5,409 5,687
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,358 5,285
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors for the audit of the Group's 48 35
financial statements
Feas payable to thg Qroup’s auditors for the audit of the 09 58
Company's subsidiaries
Operating leases - plant and machinery 241 273
Operating leases - other 22,790 22,233
Fair value movement of derivative financial instruments 482 (1.178)
Other exchange loss 54 191
Inventory recognised as an expense 85,959 78,415
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Employees

The average monthly number of full time equivalent persons (including executive directors) employed by
the Group during the period was:

2020 2019

Number Number

Selling and distribution 1,192 1,125
Administration 126 119
1,318 1,244

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Campany was two (2019; two).

Staff costs (for the above persons including directors}):

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 32,616 29,550
Social security costs 2,156 2,009
Other pension costs {see note 19) 733 490
Share based paymenis 1,204 203
Total direct costs of employment 36,609 32,252

In addition to the above, costs relating to temporary and contract staff totalied £1,876k {2019: £2,237k).
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Directors' emoluments

2020 2019

£000 £'000

Emoluments (including benefits in kind) 735 579
Compensation for loss of office including payment in lieu of notice - 188
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes 23 14
Share based payments 539 82
1,297 863

As at the period end date, four (2019: three) directors held shares under a long term incentive plan.

Directors’ emoluments include amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Emoluments (including benefits in kind) 385 343
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes 10 9
Share based payments 301 56
696 408

The highest paid director did not exercise any shares in the period (2019: none).

During the period benefits were accruing to two (2019: two) directors under defined contribution schemes.

Remuneration of key management and directors;

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Emoiuments (inciuding benefits in kind) 2,241 1,766
Compensation for loss of office including payment in lieu of notice - 188
Pension contributions to money purchase schemes 76 52
Share based payments 1,128 188
3,445 2,194
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6 Finance income

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable on bank deposits 159 85

7 Finance costs
2020 2019
£°000 £000
Interest payable on overdrafts and bank loans 103 75
Other loans (interest payable on financial liabilities at amortised cost) 9,957 9,300
10,060 9,375

Interest payable on other loans is not cash interest and relates to the interest accruing on investor loan
notes. The interest rate on the investar loan notes was changed to a fixed rate of 9% on 31 August 2017
from a stepped rate of 10% rising to 14%. The expiry date of the instrument was extended by three years

to 3 May 2023.

As a result of this refinance event, the effective rate of interest over the remaining period reduced from
8.88% to 7.09% with effect from 31 August 2017 and remained at 7.09% throughout the current and prior

financial years.
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8 Taxonloss

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on losses for the period 1,065 739
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 304 260
1,369 9g69
Deferred tax:
Originaticn and reversal of timing difference (167) {(112)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (63) 499
Effect of changes in tax rates 18 12
{212) 399
Total tax on foss 1,157 1,398

The tax assessed for the period is higher {2018: higher) tharn the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK. The differences are explained below:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Loss before taxation {7,962) (7,781}
:Bots:ebsrgﬁ Ela;‘;li&r(l) %ulf;gldf;i by standard rate of corporation tax (1,513) (1,478)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3,317 2,105
income not taxable (80) -
Deferred tax not recognised (B26) -
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 241 759
Re-measurement of deferred tax — change in UK tax rate 18 12
Total tax charge for the period ) 1,157 1,398

In the Spring Budget 2020, the Government announced that from 1 April 2020 the corporation tax rate
would remain at 19% (rather than reducing to 17%, as previously enacted). This new law was
substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. As the proposal to keep the rate at 19% had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, its effects are not included in these financial statements.
However, had the proposed tax rate change been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, the
deferred tax asset would have increased by £101k.
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9 Intangible assets

Goodwill  Computer Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 17/02/2019 96,458 3,939 100,397
Additions - 1,166 1,166
Disposals - (3) (3)
At 16/02/2020 96,458 6,102 101,560
Accumulated amortisation
At 17/02/12019 42 465 3,388 45,853
Charge for the period 4,806 552 5,358
Disposals - (1) (1)
At 16/02/2020 47,271 3,939 51,210
Net book value
At 16/02/2020 49,187 1,163 50,350
At 17/02/2019 53,993 551 54,544

Amortisation for the periad is charged to operating expenses within the Group Profit and Loss Account.

The Company has no intangible fixed assets (2019: none).
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10 Tangible assets

Leasehold Plant and Computer Fixtures and

impravements machinery equipment fittings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 17/02/2019 40,430 2,742 2,484 15,980 61,636
Additions 1,607 254 915 1,628 4,404
Disposals 8 (54) (57) (50) (169)
At 16/02/2020 42,029 2,942 3,342 17,558 65,871
Accumuljated depreciation
At 17/02/2019 21,581 2,448 2,003 10,419 36,541
Charge for the period 3,066 119 226 1,998 5,409
Disposals {1} (56) {57) (46) (160)
At 16/02/2020 24,646 2,511 2,262 12,371 41,790
Net book value
At 16102/2020 17,383 431 1,080 5,187 24,081
AL17102/2019 18,849 294 3N 5,561 25,095

Depreciation for the period is charged to operaling expenses within the Group Profit and Loss Account.

The Company has no tangible fixed assets (2019: none).
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued) for the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020

Investments
The carrying value of the Company's investments in subsidiaries was as follows;
Group
companies
£000
At 17/02/2019 4,636
Share based payment expense in respect of subsidiary employees 1,018
At 16/02/2020 5,652
The Company has the foliowing subsidiaries:
% Ownership
Registered Country of Principal
Subsidlary undertaking number of ordinary incorporation activities
shares
Held directly by the Company:
Stitch 2 Limited 07216740 100 UK Holding company
Held indirectly:
Stitch 3 Limited Q7217283 100 UK Holding company
Stitch Bidco Limited 07068803 100 UK Holding company
Hobbycraft Trading Limited 00806269 100 UK Retail
Hobbycraft Superstores Limited 03289788 100 UK Dormant

The dormant subsidiary (Hobbycraft Superstores Limited) is exempt from preparing and filing individual
financial statements by virtue of s394A and s448A of the Companies Act 2006, Hobbycraft Group Limited
has taken the audit exemption for the following subsidiaries by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act;
Stitch 2 Limited, Stitch 3 Limited, Stitch Bidco Limited. A Parent Company guarantee has been provided
for these entities under s479C of the Companies Act. The directors believe that the carrying value of the
investments is supported by their underlying net assets and thelr value in use, which has been assessed
using estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value.

The registered office of all subsidiary undertakings is:

7 Enterprise Way

Aviation Park

Bournemouth Internationat Airport
Hurn, Christchurch

Dorset
BH23 6HG
Inventories
Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Goods for resale 33,960 32,023 - -

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of the inventory and its carrying amount.
The goods for resale values are shown net of provisions to reflect the write-down of stocks to net
realisable value, which amounted to £95k at 16 February 2020 (17 February 2019: £188k). Write-downs

and any reversat of write-downs are included in cost of sales.
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13 Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 213 262 - -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 822 1,817
Other debtors 471 498 - -
Deferred tax {see note 18) 856 544 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 6,225 5,376 2 -
7,765 6,780 824 1,817
Due within one year 6,909 6,136 2 -
Due after mare than one year 856 644 822 1817
7,765 6,780 824 1,817

A deferred tax asset has been recognised by the Group in respect of fixed asset timing differences
expected to be realised after more than one year.

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand, although they are not expected (o be recalled within one year.

14 Craditor amounts falling due within ane year

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Trade creditors 15,428 16,107 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 118 73
Corporation tax 735 642 - -
Other taxation and social security 6,322 5125 - -
Othar creditors 5,941 5,332 - -
Derivative financial Habitities 432 “ - -
Accruals and deferred income 5844 4,111 4 5
34,752 31,317 122 736

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
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16 Creditor amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group  Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2018

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Investor loan notes 150,802 140,845 - -
Accruals and deferred income 8,663 9,198 - 358 493
Share based payment liability (see note 20) 1,443 238 1,443 238
160,908 150,281 1,801 731

Accruals and deferred income falling due after more than one year relate to lease incentives which are
expected to be amortised to the Profit and Loss Account over the remaining term of the leases or to the
first break clause.

At 16 February 2020 the Group had access to a £6.0m working capital facility provided by Lioyds,
including a £2.5m overdratt facility with an interest rate of LIBOR + 3%. Al 16 February 2020 the overdraft
facility was un-utilised (2019: un-utilised). The facility expired on 30 April 2020 and it has been replaced
with a new £3.5m working capital facility with an expiry date of 31 January 2021. The new facility provides
a £1.0m duty deferment guarantee and £2.5m of credit relating to forward foreign exchange contracts.
Lloyds have a floating charge debenture over the assets of Stitch Bidco Limited and Hobbycraft Trading
Limited. In the event of a liquidation of the Group, Lloyds will receive priority over unsecured creditors in
the repayment of any amounts owed by Stitch Bidco Limited and Hobbycraft Trading Limited to Lloyds.

The interest rate on the investor loan notes was changed to a fixed rate of 9% on 31 August 2017 from a
stepped rate of 10% rising 10 14%. The expiry date of the instrument was extended by three years to 3
May 2023. As a result of this refinance event, the effective rate of interest over the remaining period
reduced from 8.88% to 7.09% with effect from 31 August 2017 and remained at 7.09% throughout the
current and prior financial years. At 16 February 2020 the rolled up interest included in the unsecured
investor loan notes was £41,065k (2019: £31,108k).

Maturity of debt

The Group's total debt is due for repayment as follows:

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

in less than one year - - - -

In more than one year but less than two . ) _ .
years

::; ;r::re than two years but less than five 150,802 140 845 _ _

In mare than five years - . - -

150,802 140,845 - -
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments may be analysed as follows"

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Egr;?ncial assets measured at amortised 4,303 3,913 822 1817
Financial ligbilities measured at

amortised cost 178,483 166,175 1,923 1,467

Derivative financial instruments 482 N . _

measured at fair value

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade debtors, other debtors, accrued income and
amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise frade creditors, other creditors, accruals, loan
notes and amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings.

Derivative financial instruments
The Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts to mitigate the exchange rate risk for foreign
currency purchases. At 16 February 2020, there were 23 outstanding contracts (2019: no outstanding

contracts) maturing within 12 months of the period end. The Group was committed to buy $20,100k for
a fixed £ Sterling amount.

The fair value of outstanding forward foreign currency contracts reflects the mark-to-market vaiuation
confirmed by the contract provider. Refer to the Directors’ Report for consideration of the nature and
axtent of the risks arising from these financial instruments.

The Company has no derivative financial instruments (2019: none).

Provisions for liabilities

The provision in the financial statements for the Group is as follows:

Dilapidations provision

£000

At 17 February 2019 and 16 February 2020 40

The provision for dilapidations was set up in respect of the expected costs of repair that would arise on
the exit of a leased site, which is not expected to be until at least 2022.

The Company has no provisions (2019: nil).
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18 Deferred tax

The deferred tax asset in the financial statements of the Group is as follows:

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 834 622
Short term timing differences | 22 22
856 644

The movément on the deferred tax asset is as follows:
£000
At 17 February 2019 644
Deferred tax credit in Profit and Loss Account far the period 149
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 63
At 16 February 2020 856

The Caompany has no provisions for deferred tax.

A deferred tax asset of £82k (2019: £832k) in relation to carried forward lesses has not been recognised
as the recoverability of this amount in the foreseeable future is not sufficiently certain.

The net deferred tax asset is expected to increase over the next 12 months. This primarily relates to
further timing differences arising on fixed assets.

19 Pensions and similar obligations

During the period the Group made coniributions on hehalf of a number of employees and two directors
(2019: two) lo defined contribution schemes. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those

of the Group.

The pension charge, representing contributions payable by the Group to such schemes, including in
respect of redundancy payments, amounted to £733k (2019: £490k).

Contributions totalling £112k (2019: £74k) were payable at the period end and are included in creditors.
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20 Share based payments

Hobbycraft Group Limited operates two share schemes. These schemes are the Executive Scheme and
the Hobbycraft Share Offer Plan. Up until an amendment in the terms on 30 November 2018 both
schemes were accounted for as equity settled schemes. The amendment, which is explained below,
modified the schemes to being recognised as cash-settled schemes,

All of the shares held were issued at market value. Up until the modification, a charge was recognised in
the Profit and Loss Account in reference o the fair value at the date at which the shares are granted. The
charge in respect of awards granted was spread over the vesting period, which reflected management's
expectation of the date of change of control of the Group. This charge to the Profit and Loss Account was
recognised in equity in the share-based payments reserve.

Modification

On 30 November 2018, Hobbycraft Group Limited amended the terms for the schemes such that the
employees are also eligible to receive a cash-seltled bonus on the change of control of the Group if the
equily value {determined pre-shareholder debt) is within a set range on exit with a predetermined floor
and ceiling valuation. This amendment provides an additional incentive for key employees to allow them
to benefit from value creation in the business and to be paid proceeds ahead of the equity holders of the
Group. The cash-settled payment will be allocated based on the employees’ shareholding.

To the extent that value accrues to the ordinary equity shares on exit the shares under the schemes will
continue to be entitled to this value alongside other equity holders, in addition to the cash-settied payment
outlined above. As the shares within the schemes could benefit from both cash and equity settled value
management have used judgement to determine which outcome is the most probable for determining the
appropriate accounting treatment. As a result, the share schemes are accounted for as cash-settled.

The fair value of awards is measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing modei
and allocated over a vesting period lo the anticipated exit date. Expected share price volatility is
determined through the assessment of the histarical volatility of a comparable group of companies over
a period consistent with the expected life of the schemes. This aims to be indicative of future trends, but
may not necessarily reflect the actual outcome. The expected life of the schemes is based on
management’s estimated date of a change of control of the Group and is not necessarily indicative of
exercise patterns that may occur. As these awards are deemed to be cash-seltied their fair value is
reviewed on an annual basis with & corresponding liability being recognised.

Executive Scheme

Under the Executive scheme, certain employees acquired the legal and beneficial ownership of *A”
Ordinary shares. The movements in the period are cutlined below:

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Number of Number of  Number of Number of

shares shares shares shares

'000s ‘000s ‘000s '000s

Brought forward 190,000 145,000 50,000 65,000
Granted in the period 20,000 110,000 - 50,000
Forfeited in the period - (65,000) - (65,000}
Carried forward 210,000 190,000 50,000 50,000
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20 Share based payments (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the model for the calculation of the fair value of the cash-settied
share based payments at the end of the period:

2020 2019
Dates of grants 23/07/2019 30114201 ;
Weighted average share price 8.4p B.6p
Exercise price ' 1.6p 2.3p
Expected volatifity (%) 30.40% 33.37%
Expected life (years) 3 3
Dividend yield {%) 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.70% 1.10%

The weighted average share price at the end of the period was 8.4p and at the date of grant it was 6.9p.

Hobbycraft Share Offer Pian

Under the share scheme, Hobbycraft Group Limited Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) holds a number of
shares of which certain employees have acquired the beneficial cwnership since August 2010, The share
scheme operates as an equity settled arrangement under which employees would be required to sell their
shares in the event of a sale or listing of the Group.

The following table summarises the movements in treasury shares that have not unconditionally vested
under the rules of the scheme whether held by the EBT or legally owned by individuals:

Treasury shares ('000s)
Shares  Baneficlally Legally Shares Beneficially  Legally
owned owned owned Total owned owned owned Total
by the within  outside by the within  outside
EBT EBT EBT EBT - EBT EBT
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 2019
Brought forward 102,500 117,500 190,000 410,000 202,000 63,000 145,000 410,000
s::ﬂ,g' the (20,000) - - {20,000] (110,000) - (65.000) (175,000)
o g:;%d n - . 20000 20000 66000 - 110,000 175,000
Transfers
Lﬂg&id (30,500) 30,500 . - (54,500) 54,500 . ]
owners
Total 52,000 148,000 210,000 410,000 102,500 117,500 180,000 410,000

The sales and transfers of shares out of the EBT led to a total gain on allocation of shares of £7k, causing
the ESOT reserve lo increase from £311k in the prior to £318k at the balance sheet date.
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20 Share based payments {continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the mode! for the calculation of the fair value of the cash-settied
share based payments at the end of the period:

2020 2019
Dates of grants YA 30/11/2018
Weighted average share price 8.4p 6.6p
Exercise price 1.6p 2.3p
Expected volatility (%) 30.40% 33.37%
Expected life (years) 3 3
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.70% 1.10%

The weighted average share price at the end of the period was 8.4p and at the dates of grants it ranged
from 7.4p to 8.5p.
Effect on the financial statements

The effect of accounting for share based payments relating to all schemes on the Group's loss before
faxation is as follows:

2019 2019
£'000 £'000
Equity settied share based payment credit - (35)
Cash-settled share based payment expense 1,204 238
Total share based payment expense 1,204 203
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Called up share capital

Group Group
and and
Company Company
2020 2019
£000 £'000

Authorised, allotted and fully pald
410,008,500 (2019: 410,000,000) "A" ordinary shares of 0.01p each 41 41
1,590,000,200 (2019: 1,590,000,200) "B" ordinary shares of 0.01p each 159 159
591,913,054 {2019: 591,913,054) deferred shares of 0.01p each 59 59
259 259

Both “A” and “B” ordinary shares carry rights to vote and attend at general meetings and entitle the holder
to receive dividends, with no class of shares preferred to the other. Each “A” and “B" share carries a
single vote.

Upon a winding up or cther return of capital or assets to members of the Company, the holders of the “A”
and “B" ordinary shares are entitled to a payment to be distributed amongst them, according to the amount
paid up on each share.

No dividends have been proposed or paid during the period (2019: nil).

Commitments under operating leases

The Group had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below:

:;:Hg;;: Other Totat Lbir:'g iﬂ;g Other Total

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

Payment due: £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Not later than 1 year 23,176 250 23,426 22,481 302 22,793
hﬁ:ﬁ;t‘gf‘g‘;nygfj;‘:g 63,953 281 64234 70,850 320 71,170
Later than 5 years 25,420 - 25,420 25,780 - 25,780
Total 112,549 531 113,080 119,121 622 119,743

The Company had no operating leases in the current and prior years.

Capital commitments

At 16 February 2020 the Group had £341k of capital commitments (2019: nil) and the Company had no
capital commitments (2019: nil}.

Contingent liabilities

At 16 February 2020 the Group and Company had no contingent liabilities (2019: nil).
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25 Related party transactions

Transactions with other Group companies have not been distlosed, in accordance with the exemption
permitted by paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102 'Related Party Disclosures’.

Transactions with Private Equity investors

The ultimate controlling party, Bridgepoint Europe Portfolio IV LP, held the following loan notes in Stitch
2 Limited at the period end:

2020 2019
£'000 £000
Unsecured subordinated redeemable Investor “B" loan notas 149,994 140,091

(including rolled up inferest}

The related interest expense charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year was £9,903k (2019:
£9,250k).

Monitoring fees of £150k (2019; £150k) payable to Bridgepoint Advisers Limited were charged to the

Profit and Loss Account in the 52 weeks ended 16 February 2020. At 16 February 202¢ £nil {2019: £nil)
was due to Bridgepoint Advisers Limited.

Transactions with directors and key managemaent

A director of the Company held the following loan notes in Stitch 2 Limited at the period end:

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Unsecured subordinated redeemable Investor ‘B" loan notes 591 542

{including rolled up interest}

The related interest expense charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year was £49k (2019: £44k).

Transactions with other related parties

Haskins Holdings Limited and Hobbycraft Group Limited have shareholders in common.

Warren Haskins is a director of Haskins Garden Centres Limited and was a director of Hobbycraft Trading
Limited until 20 April 2010. He Is also a shareholder of Hobbycraft Group Limited holding 1,754 "A’ shares
and 31,906,305 ‘B’ shares. Haskins Garden Centres Limited charged Hobbycraft Trading Limited £562k
{2019: £567k) in the period in property rentals and overhead recharges. At 16 February 2020 £20k (2019:
£20k) was due to Haskins Garden Centres Limited.

At 16 February 2020 £1k {2019: £nil) was due to Pepco Services LLP, which is owned by Bridgepoint.
During the period Hobbycraft Trading Limited incurred expenses of £145k (2019: £nit) to Pepco Services
LLP for advisory services rendered.

At 16 February 2020 £nil (2019: £nil) was due to Estera Trust (Jersey) Limited, which was owned by
Bridgepoint up until 19 July 2019. Up until that date, Hobbycraft Trading Limited incurred expenses of
£5k (2619; £nil) to Estera Trust (Jersey) Limited relating to the administration of the Employee Benefit
Trust.
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26 Controlling party

Hobbycraft Group Limited is the ultimate parent of the Group and is the smallest and largest group in
which the results of the Company were consolidated.

The ultimate controlling pariy is a fund managed by Bridgepoint Advisers Limited. On 25 October 2019
a fund transfer took place. Prior to that date, Hobbycraft Group Limited was parl of Bridgepoint Europe
IV Private Equity Fund, whereas from that date onwards Hobbycraft Group Limited is part of Bridgepolnt
Europe Paortfolio IV LP.
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